
City of Broken Arrow 

Minutes 

City Council Meeting 

Mayor Debra Wimpee 

Vice Mayor Christi Gille!ipie 
Council Member Johnnie Parks 

Council Member Lisa Ford 
Council Member Justin Green 

City Hall 

220 S 1st Street 

Broken Arrow OK 

74012 

Tuesday, September 17, 2024 Time 6:30 p.m. Council Chambers 

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation

3. Roll Call
Present: 4 -

Absent: 1-

Mayor Debra Wimpee called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

Pastor Steve Smith performed the invocation. 

Justin Green, Lisa Ford, Johnnie Parks, Debra Wimpee 
Christi Gillespie 

4. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Mayor Wimpee led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

5. Consideration of Consent Agenda

Aye: 4-

A. 24-1258
B. 24-84
C. 24-1257
D. 24-1266
E. 24-1260

F. 24-1275

G. 24-1242

H. 24-1163

Mayor Wimpee indicated Item X was to be tabled. She asked if there were any other Items to 
be removed from the Consent Agenda; there were none. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Justin Green, seconded by Lisa Ford. 
Move to approve the Consent Agenda less Item X 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
Justin Green, Lisa Ford, Johnnie Parks, Debra Wimpee 

Acknowledgement of travel by City Council Members 
Approval of the City Council Meeting Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Approval of the Special City Council Meeting Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Acceptance Planning Commission meeting minutes of August 8, 2024 
Approval of and authorization to execute Budget Amendment Number 7 for Fiscal Year 
2025 
Approval of and authorization to execute Budget Amendment Number 8 for Fiscal Year 
2025 
Approval of and authorization to declare certain City owned vehicles and equipment as 
surplus and authorize the sale of those items at an online public auction 
Approval of and authorization to execute Resolution No. 1601, a Resolution of Necessity 
to Condemn Property located at 12104 S 145th E Ave, Broken Arrow, OK 74011, 
located in Section 4, Township 17 North, Range 14 East of the Indian Meridian, Tulsa 
County, Oklahoma, for the Aspen, Tucson to Shreveport Roadway Improvements, 
Parcel 13.0 (Project No. ST2031) 

I. 24-1246 Approval of and authorization to execute Resolution No. 1602, a Resolution of Necessity 
to Condemn Property located at southwest corner of Elm Place and Albany Street, 
Broken Arrow, Oklahoma, located in Section 3, Township 18 North, Range 14 East of 
the Indian Meridian, Tulsa County, Oklahoma, for the Stone Ridge Stormwater 

J. 24-1261

K. 24-1273

L. 24-1176
M. 24-1233

N. 24-1224

0. 24-1217

Detention, Parcel 1.0 (Project No. SW1910) 
Approval of and authorization to execute an engagement letter with Arledge & 
Associates, PC for fiscal year ending Jone 2024 
Approval of and authorization to execute an Interlocal Agreement between the County 
of Wagoner, Oklahoma and the City of Broken Arrow, Oklahoma concerning County 
Road and Bridge Maintenance and Repair 
Approval of and authorization to renew Datto Backupify storage agreement 
Approval of and authorization to execute Agreement for Professional Consulting 
Services with Garver, for the study ofNEEDA (North Elm Economic Development 
Area) Regional Pond (Project No. SW25020) 
Approval of and authorization to execute a Promotional License between Ice Challenge 
Enterprises, LLC and the City of Broken Arrow for the installation and operation of an 
outdoor holiday ice rink at the Rose District Pavilion 
Approval of and authorization to execute Amendment Number 2 to the Agreement for 
Professional Consultant Services with Poe & Associates, Inc. (Project Number ST2028) 

Broken Arrow City Council Minutes Pagel 9/1712024 





accord official recognition to this magnificent document and its memorable anniversary, and 
to the patriotic celebrations which will commemorate it; and WHEREAS: Public Law 915 
guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the President of the United States of 
America designating September 17 through 23 as Constitution Week, NOW, THEREFORE I, 
Debra Wimpee by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of Broken Arrow 
do hereby proclaim the week of September 17 through 23 as CONSTITUTION WEEK and 
ask our citizens to reaffirm the ideals the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by 
vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties. IN 
WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City to be 
affixed this 17th day of September of the year of our Lord two thousand twenty four." 

Commemorative photos were taken. 

Council Member Lisa Ford noted she and Vice Mayor Gillespie belonged to other chapters of 
the DAR in Broken Arrow. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Justin Green, seconded by Johnnie Parks. 
Move to approve and authorize execution of a Proclamation declaring the week of 
September 17-23, 2024, as Constitution WeekThe motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 4 - Justin Green, Lisa Ford, Johnnie Parks, Debra Wimpee 

B. 24-1235 Presentation updating the Council on the status of the Uber Rideshare Program 
Tourism Manager Makala Barton reported in the fall of 2022 City Council approved a pilot 
program for a rideshare program with an intent to promote shopping and dining to visitors in 
the City. She stated the program enabled any visitor staying in a Broken Arrow hotel to 
obtain a free ride to and from the Rose District or New Orleans Square. She discussed some 
of the marketing efforts made over the past two years including flyers, business cards, 
website development, educating hotel staff, etc. She reported over the past two years 
approximately 25 8 trips were taken, the average individual stayed 1.5 nights, and overall, the 
City had spent approximately $7,000 dollars on this program. She noted $50,000 dollars was 
budgeted for this program; therefore, significantly less was spent on this program. She stated 
lengthy discussions were held with the Visit Broken Arrow Board to determine whether it 
was worthwhile continuing this program. She noted the program did not cost much aside 
from the time spent by Broken Arrow Staff marketing the program and keeping the hotels 
informed. She stated feedback from the VBA was positive overall. She noted one of the 
biggest difficulties the program faced was turnover in hotel front desk staff where hotel front 
desk staff was not keeping the public informed of this program. She stated the Visit Broken 
Arrow Board recommended continuing the program and had ideas for continued marketing. 
She stated Staff, the VBA Board, and the hotels suggested adding Tulsa airport rides to the 
program. She noted this would be added to the program for a trial period. She noted the 
current hours of the program would also be extended to accommodate later business hours in 
the Rose District. She stated the program would be removed from pilot program status, 
would be added into the budget, and analyzed annually. She noted the program was a great 
concept, there was a lot of interest, but the program needed more time and additional 
marketing. 

Mayor Wimpee asked if all the hotels were participating. 

Ms. Barton responded all hotels were aware of the program, but the City could not force the 
hotels to advertise. 

Mayor Wimpee asked if hotels could be asked to add information about the program to their 
websites. She noted she felt the program would be a benefit to the hotels. 

Ms. Barton stated the hotels were provided information about the program during the 
quarterly hotel meetings. She stated some of the hotels were not permitted to put business 
cards with the QR codes for the program on the front desk counters; each hotel had different 
rules regarding what could be advertised on websites, front desks, in rooms, and even 
regarding what could be discussed with patrons upon check-in. 

Council Member Ford stated when she worked for the Police Department she wanted to put 
information in hotel rooms regarding safety, but even this was not permitted in some hotels. 

Ms. Barton stated most hotels at least ailowed a visitor's guide, a Tulsa Visitor Guide, and 
there was discussion regarding creating a Broken Arrow Visitor Guide or putting a Broken 
Arrow Visitor section in the Tulsa Visitor Guide. She noted there would also be a digital ad 
placement in the airport. She stated there would also be other additions to marketing. 

Council Member Ford noted in order to get a free ride from the airport, you had to stay in a 
Broken Arrow hotel. 

Ms. Barton agreed. She noted information about the program would also be put into 

Broken Arrow City Council Minutes Page3 9/17/2024 



conference swag bags. 

Council Member Ford stated she was proud of City Staff for thinking outside the box 
regarding advertising and marketing. 

Ms. Barton noted a hoteliers' meeting would be held, and this would be a topic of 
conversation during said meeting. 

Mayor Wimpee asked about the average ride cost. 

Ms. Barton responded it was approximately $10 dollars per ride. 

8. Citizens' Opportunity to Address the Council on General Topics Related to City Business or Services
(No action may be taken on matters under this item) 

Mayor Wimpee indicated no Citizens signed up to speak. 

9. General Council Business
A. 24-1254 Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of and authorization to execute 

Resolution 1603, a Resolution fixing the amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 

2024 to mature each year; fixing the time and place the bonds are to be sold; 

designating a Paying Agent/Registrar and Disclosure Counsel; approving the 
Preliminary Official Statement and distribution thereof; and authorizing the Clerk to 

give notice of said sale as required by law and fixing other details of the issue 

B. 

C. 

Finance Director Cindy Arnold reported during the budget workshop there was a list of 
projects discussed. She noted this list was about the same, but a few modifications were 
made due to the fact that the City was able to bond a little more money. She stated 
Resolution No. 1603 fixed the amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024. She 
displayed and discussed the project list for Series 2024A, which would be the 9th Series sold 
from the 2018 bond election and would include $19,845,000 dollars in Proposition 1, 
Transportation; and $3,655,000 dollars from Proposition 3, Quality of Life. She stated Staff 
recommended approval of Resolution No. 1603. She noted the City would go out to sell in 
30 days. 

Council Member Johnnie Parks noted these were projects approved by the citizens of Broken 
Arrow in 2018. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Johnnie Parks, seconded by Lisa Ford. 
Move to approve Resolution No. 1603 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 4 - Justin Green, Lisa Ford, Johnnie Parks, Debra Wimpee 

24-1202 Consideration, discussion and possible approval of and authorization to execute 

Resolution No. 1605, a resolution of the City of Broken Arrow, Oklahoma (the "City") 
approving the incurrence of indebtedness by the Broken Arrow Municipal Authority 

(the "Authority") issuing its Promissory Note, Series 2024 (the "note"); providing that 

the organizational document creating the authority is subject to the provisions of the 

Indenture authorizing the issuance of said Note; waiving competitive bidding with 

respect to the sale of said Note and approving the proceedings of the authority 
pertaining to the sale of said Note; approving and authorizing execution of an 

Agreement of Support; and containing other provisions relating thereto 

Ms. Arnold stated this Item should be tabled until after the BAMA meeting. 

Following the Broken Arrow Municipal Authority Meeting Item 9B was discussed and a 
motion was made: 

Ms. Arnold reported Resolution No. 1605 would approve the indebtedness incurred by 
Broken Arrow Municipal Authority for $3,264,000 dollars for twelve side loaders for the 
Solid Waste and Recycling Department. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Lisa Ford, seconded by Johnnie Parks. 
Move to approve Resolution No. 1605 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 4 - Justin Green, Lisa Ford, Johnnie Parks, Debra Wimpee 

24-1232 Consideration, discussion, and possible award of the lowest responsible bid to Cherokee 

Pride Construction, Inc., and approval and authorization to execute a construction 
contract for the Arrow Forge - Innovation District Improvements (Project No. 2352100) 

Director of Engineering and Construction Charlie Bright reported on March 21, 2023, Broken 
Arrow City Council approved and authorized the Engineering firm, BKL, Inc., to design 
roadway, stormwater, gravity sanita1y sewer, and water for Arrow Forge, located south of 
Florence Street between Olive Avenue and Aspen Avenue. He stated Arrow Forge included 
4,700 feet of asphalt roadway, 960 feet of sidewalk, 8,326 linear feet of curb and gutter, 

Broken Arrow City Council Minutes Page4 9/17/2024 


















